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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF PRATYAYA E COMMERCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PRATYAYA E COMMERCE
PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025 and its Loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not
include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process. %/ /,
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
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qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial
Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Losé, Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account. '

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the IndAS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal

financial controls with reference to Financial Statements. /A
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii.  The Company do not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
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caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in
contravention to the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further, during the course
of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s R‘;eport) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Place:Hyderabad
Date:XX.05.2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Pratyaya E Commerce Private Limited of even date) .

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of
PRATYAYA E COMMERCE PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2025
in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date. '

<

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

~ Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference
to Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

oy
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial
Statements includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
‘Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to  Financial
Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal
financial control with reference to Financial Statements established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL.

Place:Hyderabad ‘ For S.R Garimella & Co.,
Date:09.05.2025 Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000891S

M No: 227200
UDIN: 952972808 HiE &_Sm;f
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report as required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Refer to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our

report of even date) With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, we
report the following:

i. In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a programme of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets
in a phased manner which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the side of
the company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme certain fixed
assets were physical verified by the management during the year, according to the
information and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) The company has no immovable propertiés, which are not held in the name of the
company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

ii. (a) In our opinion, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
‘management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% are more in aggregate for each class of
inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.
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(b) As disclosed in Note -16 financial statements, the company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from ICICI Bank on the basis of security
of current assets. The submission of quarterly returns or statements are waived by the bank.

iii. During the year, the company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore, the '
provisions of clause 3(iii) of the said Order are not applicable to the company.

iv. The company has not made any loans, investments, guarantees and security on which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the company.

v.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from public. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (v) of paragraph
3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

vi.  As explained to us, the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the
Company.

vii. (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including,
Income tax, GST, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent
applicable to it. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, GST or
cess which have remained outstanding as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than 6 months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not having the
tax dues under dispute.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no such
transactions not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).
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ix. (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of any loan or other borrowings or any interest due thereon to
any lender.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not been a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the loans were
applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds
raised on short term basis which have been utilized for long term purposes.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. ’

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies.

x. (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Therefore, the provisions of Clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The company issued equity shares on conversion of CCPS as mentioned in Note :14 of the
financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has complied the requirements under section 42 and section 62 of the
Companies Act, 2013 as applicable.

(i) As of best of knowledge and information and explanation given to us, funds have
been utilized for the purposes for which they have been raised.
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xi. (a) We have not noticed any case of fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees during the year. The management has also not reported any case of
fraud during the year.

(b)During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form  ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

xii. - The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xii) of paragraph
3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  As per the information and explanations received to us all transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable, and the
details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards. Identification of refated parties were made and provided by the
management of the company. ‘

xiv. The company is not covered by section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, related to
appointment of internal auditor of the company. Therefore, the company is not required to
appoint any internal auditor. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable to the Company.

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him for the year under review. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xv) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. '
(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities during the year.
(¢) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
: by the Reserve Bank of India.
(d) As per the information and explanations received, the group does not have any CIC as
part of the group.

Branch: Flat No. 304, Queens Court Apartment, #3-6-106, Street No. 19, Himayat Nagar, Hyderabad- )
Ph: 040 — 66462292, Mobile No. 9246182292, Email: sandeepgdps@srgco.in

Head Office: 4th Floor, D No:52-1/1-3, National Highway Service Road, Veterinary Colony, Gunadala,
Vijayawada -520004 Ph: 0866-2975292, Mobile No. 9392972292 - Email: ricvia@rediffmail.com
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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xvii. The Company has incurred cash loss of Rs 978.58 lacs during the financial year covered by our
audit and loss of Rs 1,014.91 lacs the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the previous statutory auditors during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, no material uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

xx.  There is no liability of the company under the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act,
relating to Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xx) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

xxi. ~ The company has not made investments in subsidiary company. Therefore, the company does
not require to prepare consolidated financial statement. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
(xxi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

Place:Hyderabad For S.R Garimella & Co.:’
Date:09.05.2025 Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0008191

Branch: Flat No. 304, Queens Court Apartment, #3-6-106, Street No. 19, Himayat Nagar, Hyderabad-500029
Ph: 040 - 66462292, Mobile No. 9246182292, Email: sandeepgdps@srgco.in

Head Office: 4t Floor, D No:52-1/1-3, National Highway Service Road, Veterinary Colony, Gunadala,
Vijayawada -520004 Ph: 0866-2975292, Mobile No. 9392972292 Email: ricvia@rediffmail.com




Pratyaya E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN < U72900TG2014PTC0S6782

Balance Sheet as.at March 31, 2025

(Al 'amounts In INR Lakhs; tnless otherwise stated)

’ Asat Asat
Particulars Notes March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
i Non-current assets
{a) Proparty, plant and equipment 3 3801 10.42
(b) Right-of-use assets 461.37 :
{c} Financial assets
(i} Security deposits 4{a) 17.43 -
{dy - Deferred tax assets (net) 5 682.41 417.42
{e} Nonscurrent tax assets (net) & 19.41 5.10
{f} Other non-current assets 7 1855 -
Total - Non-current assets 1,237.18 43294
§ Currentassets '
{a) inventories & 1,548.89 687,24
(h) Finaricial assets
(i) Trade receivables 4 85043 42,41
(i) Cashand cash equivalents 10 3.60 184.50
{ili} Bank balanice other than Cash and ¢ash eguivalents 11 4.09 4.00
{iv} Other financial assets 12 26,17 15,86
{c) Othercurrentassets 13 1,157,29 445.56
Total - Cutrent assets 3,690.47 1,379.57
TOTAL - ASSETS 4,927.65 1,812.51
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I Equity
{a} Equity share capital € 14{a} 533 3.9%
(b}  Otherequity 14k} (1,173.75) {1,320.65)
Total - Equity {1,168.42} {1,316.70)
i Non-<current Rabilities
{a}, ‘Provisions 15 3040 21,27
{b} Financial abilities :
i} Leaselisbilities 4 44493 i
Total - Non-current liahilities 47533 21.27
il Current liabilities
{a} ' Financial Habilitles
{i} Borrowings 5 2844.96 786.00
{i} Lease liabilities 4b 26.17 &
{iii} Trade payables .
Totral outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 533.77 459.96
Total.cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 17 1,821.92 801,18
enterprises
{iv} -Other financial liabilities 18 1438 98030
(b} ‘Provisions 19 20.50 10.20
{c) .Other current liabilitiés 20 259,03 76.28
Total - Current liahilities 5,620.74 3,107.93
Total - Linbilities 6,096.07 3,128.20
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,927.85 1,812.50
Skt
Summary of material accounting policles 24
The accompanylng notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report.of even date
For $.R. Garimella &Co. For and on behalf of the Boand of Directors of
Chartered Accountants, Pratyaya £<Commerce Private Limited
ICAHFirm Registration No..0008915 ¢
| s, PN\ ol
N Senice R, Guneddla |-~ 1 R R
I A
%
** Bala Satish Gurlinka
{Director}
- {DiN: 10478931} {DIN: 07013884)
Place: Hyderabad Place: Bengalury Place: Bengalury
Date: May 09, 2025 Date': May 09, 2025 Date : May 09, 2025



Pratyaya E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN - U72500TG2014PTC096782

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2025
{All amouints in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

Particulars - Year Ended YearEnded
Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I Revenuefrom operations 21 13,354.43 4,544 85
It Otherincome 22 0.79 - 341
M Total income (I + 1) 13,355.22 4,548.26
IV . Expenses
{a) Purchase of stock-in-trade 233 6,724.60 2,418.76
{b} Changes in inventories of stack-in-trade 23b (861.65) {203.55)
{c} Employee benefits.expense 24 459.92 36&\43
(d) Financecosts 25 169.48 109,70
{e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 25.88 4.68
(f} Other expenses 27 7,901,04 2,880.23
Total expenses: 14,419.27 5,877.30
vV {Loss) before tax (I - iV} {1,064.05) {1,029.04)
Vi Income tax expense
{a) Currenttax 28 B -
{b} Deferredtax 28 {265.72) (267.49)
(265.72) {267.49)
Vil {Loss)for the year {V-VI} {798.33) {761.55)
Vil Other comprehensive {ioss) / income ¢
ftemsthat will not be reclassified to profit orless
{a) Re-measurement {losses) / gains on.defined benefit plans 31 {287 (3.38)
income tax effect on above 28 {0.73} 1.28
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year ' {3.60} {2.10}
1X  Total comprehensive {loss) / income for the year (Vi + Vil {801.93) {763.65)
X ‘Eamings per equity share [Nominal value of share 3 1] 29
Basic (%) {156.20} {192.82}
Diluted () {156.20} {192.82)
Summary of material accounting policies 24

The accompanying notesars an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our teport of even date
For $.R. Garimella & Co:

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 0008915
: (d

SaifSan éep alimeIIaDP

Pariner

M

Place: Hyderabad
Date : May 08, 2025

/#52-1/1-3, 4th Floor
Nt Senvice Rd, Gunadala
VIJAYAWADA

rship No.: 227200

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Pratyaya E-Commerce Private Limited

é%héng{b&’;a

{Birecicr)

{DIN: 10478931}
Place: Bengaluru
Date : May 08, 2025

Bala Satish Gurlinka
{Director)

{DIN: 07013884)
Place: Bengaluru
Date + May 09, 2025



Pratvaya E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN - U729007TG2014PTCO96782

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,2025
(Al amounts i INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

. Year ended Year anded
Particulacs Hotes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss) beforetax {1,064.05) {1,029.04)
Adiustments to reconcife profit before tax to-net cash flows:

Depreciation and amorti expense 26 25.88 4,68

Finance costs 25 169.48 10970

Interest income 22 {0.79) @

Provision for doubtful debits, depositsand advances 27 10,18 “
Operating profit before working capital changes {859.30) {914.66)

iy workir al;

{lncrease)/decrease in trade receivables {960.07) 41,14

{ihcrease)/ decrease in inventories {861:65) (:zos.ss)

{Increase)/ decrease in otherassets {729.46) (297.67)

Inicrease/(dacrease) i teade pavables 1,094:56 820,33

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 16:56 1121

Increase/ {dacrease) inother liabilities 167.04 48.27
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations {2,132.32) {494.93)
Inetme taxes (paid) [ refund received (14:31) {3.96)
Net cash flow from/ {used in} operating activities (A} {2,146.63} {498.39)
Cash fows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment; intangible ts-and capital ad 2 {35.10) {1.15)

Interest received : 0.55 -
Net cash flow from/ {used in) Investing activities {8} i {34.55) {115}
Cash-flows fram financing activities

Proceeds from issue bf comptlsorily convertibile preference shares - 950.14

Proceeds / {repayment) from durrent borrowings 16 2,165.05 {211.42)

Payment of lease Habilities 4 {4.29) -

nterastpaid {16047} {109.70)
Neit cash flow from/ {used in) financing activities () 2,000.29 629.02
Het increase/ (dacrense) In cash and cash sguivalents (A+8+C} {180.89} 128.98
Cash and cash eguivalerits at the beginning of the year 184.50 5552
Cash and cash equivalents at' the end of the year 3.61 184,50
Components of Cash and ¢ash equivalents
Balances with banks - on tiirrent account 2,02 18342
Cash ~on hand 158 1.08
Total Cash and cash eguivalents .60 184.50

The patiying notes are tegral part of the financial statements.

As perpurreport of even date

For 5.R. Garimella & Co, /,;:; Ty
Chartered Accountarits /
ICAl Firmy Registration Mb. 0008915 f'[ c,) p

3 / Q52413 4 Floon\ S\
Fors G;}imyé e | NiSeiceRd, Gunadala |-~ }!
partper (| 7 e i
Methbership Nou: 237200 ;
Plac erabad

Date : May 08, 2025

For and on behalf of the-Board of Directors of
Pratyaya E-Commerce :;&m Limited

)

Ll

Bala Satish Gurlinka
rector) {Director)
{DIN: 10478931) {DIN: 07013884}

Place: Bengaluru
Date : May 09, 2025

Place: Bengaluru
Date:: May 09, 2025



Pratyava E-Cotmmetce Private Limited

CIN < L72800TGR014PTC096782

Statement of Changes in Equity for yearended March 31, 2025
{All amiounts in INR Lakbs; unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital _
s ) __ AsatMarch31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particalars No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amotint
Equity shares of X 1 each issued, subsctibed and paid up )
As at the beginning of the year 3,94,950 3.85 3,94,950 3.95
Increased during the year 1,38,082 1.38 - -
As at the end of the vear 5,33,032 5.33 3,94,950 3.95
b, Other equity
Reserves and Surpivs Other comprehensive
income
Particulars Remeasurement gains/ Total other equity
Retained earnings Securities premium {losses) on defined benefit
plans
As at April 1, 2023 {1,311.95} 748.05 6.90 (657.00)
Lossfor the year {761.55) - . {761.55)
Other camprehensive income for the year - - {2.10) (2.10)
As at March 31, 2024 {2,073.50) 748.05 4.80 {1,320.65)
Loss for the year {798.33} - “ {798.33)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - {3.60) {3.60}
Premium received on conversion’of CCPS into equity - 248.83 » 948.83
As at March 31,2025 {2,871.83) 1,696.88 120 {1,173.75)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As perour report of even date,

For5:R. Garimella & Co.
Chartered Accountants
{CAL Fibny Régistration Mo, 0008915

Date : May 09,2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

4
>

Bala Satish Guriinka
{Director}

{DIN: 67013884}
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 09, 2025

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 09, 2025



Pratyaya E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN - U72900TG2014PTCO86782

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounits in INR Lakhs; unlessotherwise stated)

{ix) Details Of Crypto Currency Or Virtual Currency

Tha Company has not traded-or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current-or previous year,

{x) Valuation Of Property Plant And Equipment {including Right-Of-Use Assets} And Intangible Assets

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right-of-use assets) and Intangible assets during the current or previous year, The Company did not
have anynvestrent Property during the current or previous year.

{xi) Registration Of Charges Or Satisfaction With Registrar Of Companies
Theere are no charges or satisfaction which are yet t6 be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

NOTE « 39

PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

Balances of certain assets and labilities as ‘at the previous year ended March 31, 2024 have been regrouped or reclassified, where necessary, to comply with Division i of
Schedule 11, Such reclassifications did not have a material impact on the financial statements.

As.per our report of even date
For S.R. Garimella & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Forand on behalf of the
Pratyaya E-Commerge Pr

ard of Directors o i\
ate Limited ) '};L A
20

7\
i ! 30
PrashantSharm Bala Satish Gurlinka
f or} {Director}
(DIN: 10478931) {DIN: 07013884}
; 0 Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date : May 09, 2025 Date : May 02,2025 Date : May 09, 2025



Pratyaya E-Commerce Private Limited
CIN- UF2900TG2014PTCO6782 :

Nutes'to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

{AH artiounts in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 3
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT.
Particulars Leasehold improvement Computers a::r:m‘” Office equipment Total
Cost )
As at Aprii 1, 2023 - ’ 16.98 7.83 1066 3548
Additions 0.14 > 1.01 118
Disposals - 1.01 0.34 0.72 2.06
AsatMarch 31, 2024 - 1612 7.4% 10.86 34.57
Adtlitions 13.06 328 5.28 13.48 35.10
As at March 33,2025 13.06 19.40 12.77 2444 69.67
Depreciation
Asat April 1, 2023 - 10.19 3.94 7.40 2153
Depreciation for the year (Refer Note:- 26} . 2.03 149 1.16 468
Disposals - 1.01 0.34 0.71 2.06
Agat March 31, 2024 - 1121 5.08 7.85 24,15
Depreciation for the year {Refer Note - 26) 022 313 2,96 1.20 7,5%
As'at March 31, 2025 2:__2__,‘2 3434 805 5.05 31,66
Net carf_ying valueas at:

March 31,2024 - 485 | 2.40 3.11 10.42

March 31,2025 12.84 ) . 5.05 472 15.38 38.01
Net carvying value
Particulars Asat Asat

WMarch 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Property, plant and eguipment ) 38.01 1042
Total L 38,01 10.43

o ‘
Fers | NHSeniceRd, Gunadala
e VIJAYAWADA 4 *

FRN:000891S
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Pratyaya E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN < U72900TG2014PTC096782

Notes tothe financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
{All.amounts indNR Lakhs; uniess othetwise stated)

NOTE: 4
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

{a) Right-of-use assets

Buildings

Cost

As at:April 1, 2024
Additions

As.at March 31, 2025
Depreciation

As at April 1, 2024
Depreciation for the year:
Termination

As.at March 31, 2025

Net carrying value as at:
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2025

{b) Lease liabilities

479.74

479,74

18.37

18.37

461.37

Particulars i

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Opening balance

Additions

Interest expense on lease labilitiss
Payments

Closing balance

466.38
9.01
(#.29)

471.10

Current
Non-current

26.17
444.93

For maturity anialysis of lease liabilities; refer Note - 33.

Evpenses / income) recognized in the Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Finance cost
Interest expense o lease liabilities

Depreciation expenses
Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Short term lease payments

Total cash outflow for leases {including short term lease payments) for is £ 41.21 {March 31,2024 is T 40.81)

9.01

1837

36.92

40.81

The lease atrangements Include extension and termination options. The Comipany applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to
renew or terminate the lease. It considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination option. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to

exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or 16 terminate.

NOTE: 4(a)
SECURITY DEPOSITS
» Asat As at
Patticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Security deposits 17.43 I
Total 17.43 “

\
\
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Pratyaya E<C ce Private 1
CIN ~ U72900TG2014PTCOI6782
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 5
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS [NET}
Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets 682.41 417.42
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Deferred tax assets (net) 682.41 A17.42
Deferred tax movement
Asat March 31, 2025
Particulars Opening balance {Charge)} / credit to {Charge)} { credit to OCI Closing balance
profit or loss DTA/(DTL)
Praperty, plant and equipment 0.72 0.35 - 1.07
Provision for gratuity 5.3% 175 {0.72) 6.38
Provision for leave encashment 1.55 241 B 3.96
Provision for sales return 9.97 (9.87) “ -
‘Provision for invéntory obsclescénce 1890 {19.90} - «
ROU ageet and lodse liability - 245 - 245
Provision for bonus - 3.66 # 366
Unpaid MSME 438{h} = 131.46 - 131.46
Allowarnices for bad ang doubtful debts - 1241 - 1241
Provision for bad and doubtftl deposits and advances ] 184 - 1.84
Business:and depreciation loss as per incame tax computations available for off-set 37883 13925 - 519.18
against futtire taxabla income )
Net deferrad tax asset 417.42 265.72 1073} 682.41
As at Moarch 31, 2024 A
Particulars Opening balanice {Charge]} / credit to Charge / creditto OCI Closing batance
_ profit or foss
Property, plant and equipment {0.47} 118 - 072
Provision for gratuity {2.02} 508 1.28 535
Provision Tor leave encashment - 155 e 155
Provision for sales retar 7.62 235 . 9.97
Provision forinventory obsolescance = 19.80 B 18,90
Unabsorbed BusiniessLoss 14251 237.42 - 379.93
148864 26748 1.28 41742
Movément of deferiad tax assets and [liabilities) during the period Is as below:
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Opening Balance 417.42 148,64
Deferred tax {credit)/ charge recognised in the Staternent of Profitand Loss 28572 26749
Deferred tax {creuit)/ charge vecognised in OCI {0.73) 1.28
Closing Balance £82.41 417.42




Pratyaya E<Commerce Private Limited

CIN - U72500TG2014PTCOB6782

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts inINR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 6
NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS
Asat Asat
Particulats Miarch 31,2025  March 31, 2023
Income tax assets {Net} 1941 5.10
19.41 510
NOTE: 7
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
. Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Capital Advances 18.55 .
18.55 -
NOTE: 8
INVENTORIES .
Particuls Asat Asat
articylars Matéh31,2025  March 31,2024
At lower of costand net realisable value
Stocksin-trade 1,622.01 766.30
Less.z Provision for inventory obsolescence {73.12) {79.06)
1,548.39 687.24
NOTE:9
TRADE RECEIVABLES £
Particulars Asat As at
arteuia March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade rieceivables from others - Unsetured considered good 95043 4241
Creditimpaired 49,31 -
899,74 42.41
Less: Loss Allewances {49.31) -
950.43 42,41
Ageing of Trade Receivables:
Outstanding {for following periods from due date of payment §)
Particulars months - Total
Mat.due 6 - 6 months ¢ o 3 I-2years 2-iyears More than 3 years
Migch 31, 2025 /
(i} Undisputed Trade Réceivables—considered good 39.13 876.75 3277 178 - 850.43
{ii} Undisputed Trade Regelvabies~ considered doubtful - 43931 ~ - - - 49,31
{ilf} Provision on Trade Recevables assesed on individual basis - {49.31) - - o - {49.31)
39.13 876.75 32,77 1.78 - - 950,43
March 31, 2024
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good - 4247 - ~ - - 42.41
{if) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtfil - - = - i
(ili) Provision on Trade Receivables assessed on individual basis ~ - - - - = %
- 4241 - - - ~ 42:41
R R
ARy whue date of pay 4 i not flabia date of ion has been sensiderad,
No trade or other receivables is due from directors or other afficersof the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables; refer Note - 32,
Trade receivables are generally non-intevest bearing and on terms of 30 to 180 days.
Notradeorother receivables is due from diréctors or other officers of the Company either severaily or jointly with any other person.
NOTE; 10
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Asat Asat
Patticulars . s
) March 31, 2025 = March 31, 2024
Balances with banks
Currentaccaunits z.02 18342
Cash iy hignd 158 108
3.60

184,50



Pratyaya E-Commaerce Private Limited

CIN - U72900T6G2014PTC096782

Notes to the financial staterents for vear ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 11
_E_ANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
5 Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2028
Bank deposits {with original maturity.of more than 3 months and having remaining matarity of less than 12 months)* 4,08 4,00
Total 4,09 4.00
* Bank balance other'than Cash and cash equivalents are held as margin money under lien to banks for credit cards used by the Company.
NOTE: 12
‘CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS < OTHERS
Asat Asat
Pacticulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 _
Security deposits 25.07 15.00
Interest accrued on deposits 1.10 0.86
2617 15,86 .
NOTE: 13
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Paiticulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Unsecuréd and considered good)
Balances with governmernit authoritigs {other than income tax) 941.06 317.19
Right to return assets 86.06 87.13
Advance to:suppliers 28.39 2643
Prepayments 644 511
Adiarnices to ermployees 3.21 *
Advanceto related parties 82.13 =
1,157.29 445,56
{Unsecured and credit impaired)
Advance to suppliers 733 -
Less: Loss allowance {7.33} -

N
8y

{ 31 NHSeniceRd, Gunadda |-
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Pratyaya E-Commerce Private Limited

CIN -~ U72900TG2014PTCO96782

Notes to the financial stateéments for year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in INR Lakhs; unhless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 14
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital
As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars No, of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 1 each
As at the beginning of the year 25,00,000 25.00 25,00,000 25.00
Increase during the year 15,00,000 15.00 - -
As at the end of the year 40,00,000 40.00 25,00,000 25.00
Issued, Subscribed abd paid-up equity share capital
Particulars - As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Equity shares of Rs. L.each
As atthe beginning of the year 3,894,950 3.95 3,94,950 3.95
Conversion of CCPS to equity 1,38,082 138 “ B
As-atthe end of theyear 5,33,032 5.33 3,94,950 3.95
{i} Shares held by Promoters :

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 % Change during the
Promioter name

No. of Shares % of total shares No. of Shares % of total shares year

Katakam Venkata Karthik 47,333 T 8.88% 47,333 11.98% {3.10%}
Bala Satish Gurlinka 47,333 8.88% 47,333 11.98% {3:10%}
Aditya Birla Digital Fashion Ventures Limited 4,38,362 82.24% 3,00,280 . 76.03% 6.21%

{ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

Each holder of equity sharés is entitled to onevote per share. The dividend propased by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the equity shareholders in the Annual

Genéral Mesting,

iri the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares'will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential share

holdars and preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shates held by the shareholders.

{iii} Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and associates:

As at March 31, 2025 ot March 31, 2024

Promoter name & -
No. of Shares % of tatal shares No, of Shares % of total shares

Aditya Birla Digital Faghign Ventures Limited 4,38,362 82.24% 3,00,280 76803%
{iv} Details of sharehoiders__halding more than 5% shares in tha Company

As at March 31, 2025 As at Matcll.‘i’ 52024
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % of paid-up No. of shares % of paid-up

hald share capital held share capital

Aditya Birla Digital Fashion Ventures Limited 4,38,362 82.24% 3,00,280 76.03%
Katakam Venkata Karthik 47,333 8.88% 47,333 11.98%
Bala Satish Gurlinka 47,333 8.88% 47,333 11.98%

{v) Thera'wereino bonus shares issued during the past three years.




Pratyaya E-Commerce Private Limited
CIN - U72900762014PTC096782

Notesto the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

(Allamouints in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 14({b}
Reserves and suiplus
Asat Asat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained earnings
Ag at the beginning of the year {2,073.50) {1,311.95)
Add: Loss for the year {798.33) {761.55)
As at the eivd of the year {2,871.83) {2,073.50}
Securities premium
As at the beginning of the year 748.05 748,05
Add; Premium received on coriversion of CCPS to equity 948.83 .
As at the end of the year 1,696.88 748.05
Qthier comprehensive income

Remeasufemant gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

As‘at the beginning of the year 4,80 6.90
Gains/ {losses) during the year (3.60) {2.10)
As at the end of the year 1.20 4,80
Total {1,173.75) {1,320.65)
Other equity

Particulars A Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Reserves and surplus

Retained garnings {2,871.83) {2.073.50)
Securities premium 1,696.88 748,05
Other comprehensiVe income 1.20 4.80

(1,3;{’3.75) {1,320,65)

3. Retained aarnings

Retained earnibgs comprise of the Company's accumulated undistributed profits/ {losses) after taxes.

2. Securities premium

Secuirities prémium 1s used to record the premium received on issue of shares, It ie utilised i accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

3. Remeasurement gains/ {losses) on défined benefit plans

The curntl4tive batances of gains/ {losses) arising on remeasuremetts of defined benefit plan is:atcumulated and recognised within this component of other comprehensive income.

ltems included in remeasurament gains/ (Josses) reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profitand Loss.
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

*Refer note - 32 for the terms and ¢onditions relating to the loans taken from related party.

" The abovesecured loan is secured by 5 first pari-passu chargeonall current assets and movable fixed assets of the Company.

# The current repo rateis 6,.5% and spread is 2.75%

/;Cg; i 50-1/1-3, 4t Floor
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NOTE: 15
NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS
As at As:at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note - 31} 30.40 21,27

3040 21.27
NOTE: 16
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS

il \ Effective interest rate Repayment Terms Asat Arat

Particliars ective interest r pay March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
Loans from banks
Cash credit/ Working capital demand Joan (secured) * Repo rate + Spread w2 On demand 974.96 -
Unsecured
Loans from others
Loans from related party® On demand 1,770.00 770.00
Working capital demand loan ~Aditya Birla Finance Limited On demand 200.00 10.00
Total current borrowings 2,944.96 780.00
Borrowings - secured 974.96 ~
Borrowings - unsecured 1,970.00 780.00



Pratyaya E-Commerce Private Limited
CIN - L72900TG2014PTCOS6782
Notes to the fi ial seat for year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in INR Lakhs; unlessotherwise stated)

NOTE; 17
TRADE PAYABLES
. Asat As at
Particulary March 31, 2025 Wiarch 31,2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer details below] 533.77 459.96
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smali enterprises® 1,821.92 801.18
Total 2,355.69 1,261.14
Details of dues'to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises D Act, 2008
" ' Asat Asat
Partlculars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
#, The principal amountiand the interest due thereon rémaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:
Principal amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises 101.07 1.53
Interest due on the dbove 0.35 »
b. The amountof interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along 10,477,538 2,570.58
with the it of the pay made ta the beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
¢. The amount of interest dise and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day »
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Smalt and Mediir Enterprises Development Act; 2006
d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining Unpaid at the end of dach accounting year 11.43 258

&. The amount of further interast remaining due and payable sven in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest duses as above
are actuzlly paid to the small enterprise for the purposa of disallowarice of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Smaliand
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

The Company has completed the process of identification of suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Madium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, by obtaining tonfirmations from all

suppliers, Information has beencollated only to-the extent of information received as at Balanee Si,:neet date.

Ageing of Trade Payables:
Outstanding 35-on March 31,2025
Particutars e {for following periods from due date of payment)
Not die
(iricluding unbilled] Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
i} MSME 421.27 11250 s - - $33.77
ii) Others 1,171.22 638.07 12.63 - = 1,821.92
i) Disputed dues ~ MSME . - : - - -
{iv] Disputed dues— Others = - ~ - -
Outst: nding as'on March 31,2024
Particufrs — {for following periods from due date of payment)
ot due - .
{including unbilled) kLess than1year 1-Z years 2-3years More than 3 yeats Total
(i} MISME 458.43 1.33 D - - 459,96
{ii} QOthers 562.10 76,45 8,92 161,71 201,18
{iil) Disputed dues - MSME < - s n - .
{iv) Disptited dijes ~ Others - - - - . .
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Notes to the fi ial for year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts:in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 18
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS
Particulars Asat Asat
Marech 31, 2025 March 31,2024

9.45% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) " - 950.14
Interest accrued and due on borrowing 13.80 5.58
Employee payable 0.59 24,58

14.39 980.30

* Board of Directors of the Company vide a ¢ircilar resolution dated August 21, 2023 approved: to offer, issue 4,09,483 + 9.45% Cumulative Compulsorily’ Canvertible Preference Shares:
{'CCLPS’/ Series A-Preference Shares’) of Rs. 1/- each for cash, at a prernium of Rs,.231/- each aggregating to Rs.'9,50,00,056 {Rupees Nine Crores Fifty Lakhs Fifty-5ix Only). The CCPS holder shall
be entitled to receive dividend in preference to any dividend on equity shares and all the dividends payable shall be paid on the date of conversion of CCPS into equity shares'of the Company.
‘Pursusnt to the terms of issuahce, the due date for conversion of 9.45% CCPS is at any time after February 29, 2024 but before March 31, 2025. These CCCPS had been issued in the below

tranches:

(Tranche »1) : 2,45,690 9:45% Cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10/~ each are entitled to a cumulative dividend @ 8.45% p.a have been alloted on September 7, 2023
{Tranche -21: 1,63,793 9.45% Cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs, 10/- each are entitled to a cumulative dividend @ 9.45% p.a have been atloted on March 31, 2024.

During the current-financial vear, the COPS were converted to 1,38,082 eguity share at face value of Re.1 per share and premium of Rs.687.14 per share.

NOTE: 19
CURRENT PROVISIONS
Particulars Asat As gt
March 31, 2025 March 3%, 2024
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note - 31) 477 4.06
Provision for fedue encashment 15.73 6:14
20.50 10,20
NOTE: 20
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particutars Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Advances received from tustomers 2708 39.90
Statutory dues {other than income tax) 3830 243
Employee related statutory dues 1.40 &
Refund liabilities 191.27 27.96
252.03 76.29

/450-4/1-3, 4th Floor’ ‘
;| NHService Rd, Gunadla |
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CIN + U72900TG2014PTLORET782

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 21
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Year Ended Year Ended
Particiars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenuefrom sale of products
Sale of products 13,354.43 4,544.85
13,354.43 4,544.85
{a) Contract balances
o As at Asat
Parfisidas March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract assets
Trade receivables 950,43 42.41
Contract liability
Advances from customars 27.06 39,90

b) The Company is in the business of trading of goods on its own platform . and other e-commerce portals and having the same nature ‘and timing of revenue. Hence, no

disgggregation of revenue has been provided.

NOTE: 22
OTHER INCOME
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income 0.33 0.24
Interest income on income tax refund 0.22 »
Other income - 3.17
Interest income on unwinding of discount on security deposit 0.24 -
0.79 3.41
NOTE: 23
PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
particalars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{8) Purchase of stock-iri-trade
Purchase of stock-in-trade 6,724.60 2,419.76
Total 6,724.60 2,419.76
{b) Changes ininventories. of stack-instrade
Opening inventories
Stock-in-trade 687.24 483.69
687.24 483.69
Less:
Closing inventories
Stock-in-trade 1,548.89 687.24
1,548.8% 687.24
{ o ¥ (861.65) (203.55)
NOTE: 24
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 423.18 344.02
Contribution to pravident and other funds 1977 1242
Gratuiity expense {Refer Note - 31} 6.96 5.30
Staff welfare expenses 10:01 4.74
459,92 366.48
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025
{Al amountsin INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

‘NOTE: 25
FINANCE COSTS .
particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expense
~ofborrowings 47.86 32.95
- Inter-corporate deposit 112:61 76.22
Interest expense- Lease liabilities 9.01 -
Other borrowing cost - 0.53
169.48 109.70
-
NOTE: 26
‘DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deprectation on property; plant and equipment {Refer Note 3) 7.51 468
Depreciation:oh right-of-use assets {Refer Note 4) 18.37 ~
25.88 4.68

{This space has been Jeft blank intentionally)
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

{This spece has been left hiank intes tionally)
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(Al its in INR Lakhs;uni therwise stated)
NOTE: 27
OTHER EXPENSES
Year Ended Year Ended
Patticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Electricity charges 2,58 144
Rent 36.92 40.81
Warehousing charges 295.84 77.38
Advertisement and sales promotion 4,727.63 1,919.94
Transportationand handling charges 1,666.72 621.77
Repairs and mainitenance
Plant:and machinery 0.32 0.33
Buildings 6.23 1.24
Insurance: 2,71 2.06
Rates and taxes 21.56 17.85
Jobwork charges 432.30 “
tegaland professional expenses 35.46 - 664
. ‘Printing and stationery 1.88 0.65
Travellihg and conveyantce 1164 7.86
Communicdtion éxpenses 0.3 0.29
Payment gateway charges 135.55 32.22
Payment to auditors (Refer details below) 2.00 200
Outsourcing, housekeeping and Security 5157 E
Provision for bad and doubtful advances and depuosits 10.18 8.45
Pravision for bad and doubtful debts 4931 -
Infarmation technology expenses 123.20 89.79
Commission Expenses 283.08 38.38
Miscellaneous expenses 3.42 0.33
7,901,04 2,880.23
Payment to auditors:
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 21, 2028 March 31,2024
For statutory audit 2.00 2.00
2.00 2.00

Lo | NiSeniceRd, Giadda |-
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Notes to the finantial stataments for year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE: 28
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The major components of income tax {income)/ expense are:

Statement of Profit and Loss:
Profit or loss section

. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current income tax
Current income tax charge - -

(A} ~ -
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences {265.72) {267.49)
{8} (265.72) (267.49)
Total (A+B) {265.72) (267.49)
OClsection
Deferred tax related t6 itemis recognised in OCI during the year

. Year Ended Yezr Ended
Parviciias « March31,2025  March 31, 2024
Net {gains)/ losses on te-measurement of defined benefit plans {2.87) (3.38)
Tax on above : {0.73) 1.28

Total _ o (3.60) {2.10)
NOTE: 29
EARNINGS PER SHARE {EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/{loss) for the yuar attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profiy/{ioss) attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted aver:ge numter of equity

shares outstanding during the year plus the wiighted average number of squity shares that would be issiied on conversion of all the dilutive prtential equity
shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the profit/{loss) and equity.share data used inthe basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars ) YearEnded Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit / (Loss) as per the Statement of Profit and Loss {801.93) {763.65)
Loss for caleulation of EPS ) (A) . {798.33}) {761.55)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Basic EPS {8) 5,11,090 3,94,950
Basic EPS (%) (A/B) (156.20) (192.82)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding {C) 5,11,090 3,894,950
'Weighted average number of potential equity shares® - 1,388,285
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of Diluted EPS 511,090 3,94,950
Diluted EPS (%) (a/c) {156.20) {192.82)

Nominal value of shares (T) 100 . 1.00
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in® Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

NOTE-30

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, the accompanying disclosures and ‘the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liahilities affected in future periods:
Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities, within the next financial year, are described below. The Company's assumptions and estimates are based on parameters
available at the time of preparation of financial statements, Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments; however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

{a) Taxes ‘ .

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it 'is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the josses can be
utilised, Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
anhd the level of future taxable profits.

As atMarch 31, 2025, the Company has T 1836.78 (March 31; 2024: R 1508.60 Jof tax losses carried forward as per income tax records of the Company,

{b) Provision on inventories )
The Company provides provision based on.policy, past experience; current trénd and future expectations of these materials depending on the category of
goods.

{c} Sales return and discounts
The Company provides for discount and sales return based on sedson wise, brand wise and channel wise trend of previous years. The Company reviews the
trend at regular intervais toensure the applicability of the same in'the changing scenario, and based on the management's assessment of market conditions.

{d} Going concern

The management has performed an assessment of the Company's abil ty to continue as a going concetn. Based on the assessment, the managemen: believes
thai there is ho material uncertainty with respect to any events or conditions thac may cast a significant doubt on the entity to continue ‘as @ going concern,
hence the financlal statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Though the Company has incurred losses and the et worth has eroded, these financial statements have been preparéd on a 'going concern' basis basad onan
Uniconditional Letter of support provi%g;gg the Holding Company fo: meeting financial and contractual obligations till March 31, 2025,

i ozt \
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated}

NOTE-31

GRATUITY AND'OTHER POST-EMIPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Company operates & gratuity plan wherein certaln employees are entitled to the benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year
of service as per-the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The:same is payable on termination of service or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five

years of continuous service,

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet for the respective plans:

Unfunded defined benefit plan
Net benefit expense recognised through the Statement of Profit and Loss
particulars Year ended Year ended
) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 5.14 4.06
Interest cost on defined banefit obligation 1.82 1.24
Total 6.96 5.30
Changes in the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligations {DBO} are as follows:
Particul Asat Asat
arbanars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening defined bengfit obligation 25.33 16.65
Current service cost . 5.14 4.06
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 1.82 1.24
Actuarial {gain)/ loss on account oft
Changes in demagraphic assumptions - {0.05)
Changes in financial assumptions 141 0.38
Experience adjustments 1.76 2.04
Actuarial {gain}/ loss recognised in OCI 2.87 3.38
_Closing defined benefit obligation 3516 25.33
Ameounts recognised in the Balance Shest
Peirticulars . As it Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unfundeg 35.18 2533
35.18 25,33
Net lability is classified as follows: ,
Current 477 4.06
Non-turrent 30.39 21.27

Vo fesaprd, o
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Notes to the financial statements for year ende_d March 31,2025
{All.amouints in INR Lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

The principal sssumptions used in determining gratuity {funded and unfunded} defined benefit obligations for the Company are shown below:

) Asat Asat
Particulars : March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discountyate 6.70% 7.20%
£.00% 8.00%

Salary growth rate

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and
demand in the employment market.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is‘as follows:

impact on defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Decrease Increase Decrease increase
Sensitivity level
Discount Rate [~/ + 1%) ‘ 244 {2.14) 1.69 {1:49)
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 6.90% {6.10%) 6.70% {5.90%)
Salary Growth Rate {- / +1%) {1.72} 1.77 {1.26) 1.30
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) {4.90%} 5.00% {5:00%) 5.10%
Attrition Rate (- /+1% ) 0.02 {0.04} {0:02) 001
(% change compared to base dugta sensitivity) 0.10% {6.10%) (0.10%) -
ES
Mortality Rate {- /+10% of mortality rates) {0.00} 0.01 0.00 0.01
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) {0.01%) 0.01% {0.01%) 0.01%

The above sensitivity analysis have been determined based on & method that-extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of thereporting period.

There has been no change fron the previcus year inthe method and assumptions sed in preparing the sensitivity analysis.

The maturity pro file of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars Asst As at

) March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Weighted average duration (based on diseounted cashflows) 6 years 6years
Within the next 12 menth: {next annual reporting period} ) 477 4.07
Between 2 and Syears 18.03 12.84
Between 6.and 10 years e 15.24 11.38
Beyond 10 years - - 22.48 16.68
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Notes to the financial statements for yearended March 31, 2025
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NOTE - 32
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Names of related parties and related party relationship with whom transactions have taken place:
Name of related parties

Ultimate Holding Company
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited

Holding Company
MAditya Birla Digital Fashion Ventures Limited

Fellow Subsidiavies

Awesomefab Shopping Private Limited
Next Tree Products Private Limited
Bewskoof Brands Private Limited
Imperial Online Services Private Limited
Styleverse Lifestyle Private Limited

Key Management Personnel (“KMP”)

Mr. Prashant Alury - Nominee Director

Mr. Bala Satish Gurlinka- Whole-time director

Mr. Prashant Sharma - Norminee Director with effect from January 25, 2024

) £
The following table provides the total amount of transactions and closing balances of related parties for the relevant financial year:

Ultimate Holding  Holding Company KMP and Relative Eellow

Particulars i P

company of KMip subsidiaries
a} Transactions taken place during the year

N Year ended March 31, 2025
Inter corporate deposit taken - 1,000.00 - o
interestion Inter corporate deposit - 112.61 - -
Sale of traded goods 0.20 0.46 - -
Remunegration paid to KMFP = = 57.75 -
Paid towards liability prior to acquisition by ABDFVL = - 92.14 -
Year ended March 3%, 2024
Interast expenses “ 76.22 ~ -
Remunération paid to KMP e - 38.43 -
Loan Taken - 1,150.98 - ‘ =
CCPS issued - 950.00 - -
Dividend on CCPS - 0.14 - “
Loah repaid - (1,150.98) - -
B) Balances outstanding.
As at March 31, 2025
inter-corporate Deposits » 1,770.00 - =
Interest accrued and due:-on borrowing ) - 13.39 - -
Receivable from KMP - - 92.14 Lo
As at March 31,2024

Inter-corporate Deposits - 770.00 - -
Interest accrued and due on borrowing - 5.62 . =

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions, Amount owed to and by related parties are
unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees received or provided for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended
March 31, 2025; the Campany ,bas ngt.recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each

gc:) NHSemceRd Gunadala
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CIN - U72900TG2014PTC096782
Notes to the financlal statements for year ended March 31, 2025

1

{All arounts in INR Lakhs; un} 1erwise stated)

NOTE -33
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a)teases

Lease commitments as lessee
The Company has entered into agreements for taking onlease certain store premises, warehouses on lease and licence basis. The lease term is for periods ranging from 3:to 21'years,

with escalation clauses in the lease agreements. Consistent with Industry practice, the Company has contracts which have fixed rentals or variable rentals based on a percentage of
sales in the stores, or'a combination of both.

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities
The below table provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis:

As at Asat

Partictilars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Withirn-one year '67.87 -
After one year but not more than five years 384,58 -
More than five years 207.18 “

659.63 »

b} Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabitities as on March 31,2025

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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NOTE-34
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: FAIR VALUE, RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

A« Accounting classification and fairvalues

The carrying value and faiy value of financial instruments by categories a5 at-March 31,2025 are as follows:
As at-March 31, 2025

Particulars FVTPL FVTOCH A“::s“;ed ‘l’ota:’:.:“r:vm Total fair value Py Fz:v‘:i;e P
Financial assets
Securlty deposits (refer note 4a) - 4249 42.49 42.48 & ¥ &
Trade receivables {Refer Note 10} - 5 95043 950.43 950.43 - - .
Cashiand cash'equivalents {Refer Note 11} - - 360 3.60 3.60 - - -
Bank balance other than the cash.and cash equivalents {Rafer - - 4.09 4.09 409 - - -
Nate'11)
Other financial assets (Refer Note 12) - ¢ 1.10 110 1.10 - - <
Total - - 1 001.?1 1;001.71 LOOJ;&H - - -
Financial liabilities )
Current horrowings (Refer Note16) “ - 2,944.96 2,944,96 2,944.96 - - -
Trade payables (Refer Note 17) .- - 2,355,689 2,355.69 2,355.69 = " ’
Other finaricial iabilities (Refer Note 18} “ ~ 14.39 14.39 14,39 - - -
Total + - 5,315.04 5,315.04 5,315.04 = ¥ -
* Carrying value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost equals to the fair value,
Asiat March 31, 2024
ised ji Falrvalue
Particulars FVTPL Fuogy  Amertied - Torale TR toalfdirvale i revels
Financial assets 5
Trade receivables (Refer Note 10) : - - 4241 42.41 42,41 E - .
Cash #nd cash eguivalents (Rafer Note 11} - - 184.50 184.50 184.50 - - -
Bank balance other than the cash and cash equivalents{Refer . - 400 4.00 4.00 - - =
Note11)
Other financial assets {Refer Note 12 % - . 1586 15,86 15.86 - B -
Total . - 246,77 286,77 246.77 - - -
e
Financial liabilities
Current borrowings {Refer Note: 18} - - 78000 78000 780.00 .
Trade payables {Refer Note~17) = - 1,261.34 1,261.14 1,261.14 - - 4
Other financial fiabilitles {Refer Notes - 18) - - 980.30 . 880.30 886.30 & ) - “
Total - : 302144 302148 302144 . * !

* Carrying value of finandal instruments messured at amortised cost equals to the fairvalug,

Key inputs for level 1 fair valuation technigties
Quoted Investment: Valuation has been dong based oh 'marset value of the investment i.e. fair value {level 1)

B. Risk ohjecti i policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities; other than derivatives; compri. 2 | and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities i¥ 1o finance the Company’s
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets inclide trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, éredit risk and liguidity risk. The Company’s senior 5 t oversees the management of these risks. 1t Is the Company's policy that'no trading in derivatives
for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agreas policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

a) Market risk

Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash-flows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk-and
currency risk.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections rélate to the position as at March 31, 2025

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared-on the basis that the amount of net debt; the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt, derivatives and the proportion of financial instrurments: in
foreign currancies areall constant.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in rarket variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other posteretirement obligations and provisions:

The sensitivity of thie relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial asséts and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2025

i) Interest rate risk

interest rate risk xs the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrament will fluctuate becatise of changes in the market interest rates. The Company does not have an exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates since debt abligations are'at fixed interest rates.

Intérest rat vl

The foltowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to:a reasonably possible: change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings taken at floating rates, With all other variables hé}d constant, the
comparw s profit/ ﬂnsa) bafore tax is'affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Pal«ticulars Asat Asat
Ty Narch 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Basis points (%) [eX) \\H cL/ ,: . 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease 0.50% incresse  0.50% decrease.

Increase/ {decrease) on tosghef \Y 1472 (1472 3.90 {3.90)
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The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observabl ket envi , showing a significantly higher volatility thanin the prior vears.

Foreign cutrency sensitivity
The Company does not have exposure to foreign currency changes during the year ended 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024

b} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that: counterparty will not meet ifs obligations undera financial instrument or customier contract, leading to a financial loss: To manage this, the Company periodically assesses
finanicial refiability of customers and pther counterparties; taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual
risk fimits are set'and periodically reviewed on the basis of such information. Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in
accordance with the Company’s policy, Investmentsof surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each ¢ party,

The Company only deals with parties which has good credit rating given by external rating agenties or based on the Company’sinternal it

'Frnancial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectations. of recovery. such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loansior receivables have been
written off, the Company.continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable dues where recoveries are made, these are recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and

Loss,
The Company is exposed to credit risk fronyits operating activities {primarily trade
The Company’s maximum exposure to:credit risk for the componants of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and Mareh 31, 2024 is the carrying amount as pirovided in Note - 8,

al

and security deposits),

¢} Liquidity risk

The. Campany monitors ite risk of shortage of funds. The pany’s ohjective is to maintain a balance t continuity of funding and flexibility th h the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans;
debentures, preference shares and commercial papers. The Company assessed the concentration of risk-with respect to refinancing its debt and fuded it to be low. The Cornpany has access o various
sources of funding.

Th below tables summarises the maturity profile of the Comipany’s financial Hiabilities based on contractual payments.

AgakMarch 31, 2025

Particulars ) tessthan 1year 1fo5years Mm;eeil:n 8 Total

EA

Botrowings {Refer Note =16} 2,958.76 B 2,958.76
Othear financial liabilities (Refer Notes - 18) 0.58 - 059
Trade payables (Refer Note - 17) 2,355.62 - # 2,355:69
Lease Liablities {Refer Nate 4b} ' 67.87 384.58 20718 659.63
Total £,382.91 384.58 20218 5,874.67
As at March31, 2024

Particulars lessthanlyear 1io5years Mm;?;::n 5 Total
Borrowings {Refer Note - 16) 780.00 = 780.00
Other finantial liabilities (Refer Notes - '18) 980.30 - = 980.30
Trade pavables {Refer Note - 17) 1,261.14 - . 126114

Lease Liabilities {Refer Nate 4b}
Total

3,021.44 - + 3,021.44

o

3| WhsenieeRe, Gt

o
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NOTE - 35
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's objective, when managing capital is'to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost.of capital, support
the corporate strategy and meet shareholder's expectations. The policy of the Company is to barrow funds through banks/ financial institutions supported by committed
borrowing facilities to meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company manages. its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in ‘economic
coniditions and the requirerent of financial markets.

The capital structure Is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, and is monitored by various metrics. Funding requirements are reviewed periodically with any
debt issuances,

The following table summarises the capital of the Company {debts excludes lease liabilities):

Particular As at As at

fewlars , March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Short-term debts (including turrent maturities of long-term borrowings) 2,944.96 780.00
Total borrowings 2,944.96 780.00
Equity ) ‘ {1,168.42) {1,316.70)

In arder to-achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loahs and borrowings.

During the year, the. Company hias fot defaulted on any loans payable; ahd there have been no breach of any financial covenants attached to the borrowings.

No changes were thade in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 ard March 31,2024

NOTE- 36
RATIO DISCLOSURES £
. Asat Asat . Reasons for variance
Ratios March31,2025 March31,2024 0 Change more than 25%

Current ratio (times)’ 0.66 0.44 48.61% Increase in current assets as compared to the
figbilities have resulted in higher current ratio

Debtequity fatic {times)? (2.51) {045} 459.60% Increase in debt during the year has résulted in
change

Debt service coverage ratio (times)® {6.47) {8.34) -22.41% NA

Returr On Equity {%)" -160% -82% 95.37% Increase in losses during the year

Inventory turnover (times)s 11.94 7.76 53.87% increase in Revenue from Operations for the vear &
higher average inventory has resuited in the variance

" Debtors turnover {times)® 22:08 7216 -69.40% Increase in Trade receivables in line with increase n

revenues for the year has resulted in lower debtor
turnover ratio

Trade Payables turnover {times)” 3.72 2.84 30.77% Increase in Purchase of stock in trade to meet the
business expansion resulted into higher trade
payable turnover ratig

Netapital turnover {timas)® {7.30) {3.74) -05.19% Dacrease in Net .capital turhover ratio due to
decrease in working capital

Netprofitmargin (76)° 6% -17% 04.32% Increasein revenue during the year as compared 1o
{osses from the previous year

Return On Average Capital Employed (%)™ -144%. =112% -28.84% Increase in losses during the year

Return On Irvestment (%)M 27% 66% 59,78% Increase in Revene during the year

Ratios have been compu follows:

1. Current ratio = Current Assets / Current Liabilities {excluding Lease Liabilities accounted as perind AS 116)

2. Debt equity ratio = Debt / Equity

Debt = Borrowings {excluting Lease Liabﬂitms acccunted as perind AS 116}~ Cash and Bank Balance (includes fixed deposits) - Liquid investments
Equity = Equity share capital Ey: : fe

s | MHSeniceRd, Gunadala }:
VIJAYAWADA /[ %
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8. Debt service coverage ratio = Earnings before interest and tax / [Finance cost* + Principal repayment of non-current borrowings {netted off to the extent of non-current
borrowings availed during the same period for the repayments)]

4. Return on equity ratio = Profit aftertax / Average of opening and closing Net Worth

5. Inventoryturnover = Revenue from Operations for the périod / Average of opening and closing Inveritories

6. Debtors turnover = Revenue from Operations for the period / Average of opening and closing Trade Receivables

7. Trade payables turnover = Total Purchases / Average of opening and closing Trade Payables

8. Net capital turnover = Revenue from Operations for the period / Average of opening and closing Working Capital )

9. Net profit margin = Profit After Tax / Revenue from Operations

10..Return on Average Capital Employed = Earnings before interest and tax / Average of opening and closing Capital Employed

1. Return on Investment = Ednings before interest and'tax / Average of opening and closing Total Assets
* Finance cost/ interest comprises of Interest expense on borrowings and excludes interest expense.on lease liabilities and interest charge on fair value of financial instruments,

NOTE - 37

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Based on the “management approach”; as defined under ind AS 108~ Operating segments, the operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM]. The bivard of directors have been identified as the CODM. The CODM has evaluated the performance of the
Company based on single operative segment for the purpose of allocation resources and evaluating financial performance; The Company is'domiciled in India and most of its
tevenue comes from India. There are no assets held by the Company outside India.

NOTE - 38
ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE 1t

{i) Details OF Benami Property Held i
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company under the Prohibition of Benarii Property Transactions-Act, 1988 {as amended in 2016} {formerly

the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988)).and Rules made thereunder.

{ii) Compliance With Number OF Layers Of Companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed trider Section 2{87} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Réstriction of riumber of layers) Rules,

2017,

(i) Relationship With Struck Off Companies
The Company has no transsctions with the compariies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956,

{iv}) Borrowings Secured Against Current Assets
The Company has borrowings which are secured against current assets, Please refer note 15 for the same

{v) Wilful Defaulter
Naohe of the sntities in the group have been declared wilful defaulter by.any bank o financial institution or other lender,

{v') Compliance With:-Approved Scheme(S) Of Arrangements
Tha Company has notientered into any scheme of atrangetent which hasan accounting impact on current or prévious finandal year.

{vil) Utilisation = Borrowed Funds And Share Premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned ar invested funds to any cther person(s}] or entity{ies), including foreign antities {intermediaries) with the uniderstanding that the
Intermediary shall: )

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfof the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any funds from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether recorded i writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b, provide any guarantee, security or the like 'on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

{viii} Undisclosed Income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous yearin the tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recordad
in the books of account.
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1.

2

Corporate information

Pratyaya E-Commerce Private Limited (“the Company”}, a private limited company domiciled in India and was incorporated on December 11, 2014
("date of incorporation”) under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The registerad office of the Company is located at Western Agua, Cabin
No. 121, 5th Floor, Workafella Business Centre Hi-Tech City, Whitefields, Kondapur, Shaikpet TG 500081.IN.

The Company is a new-age digital veniture fashion and lifestyle space focusing on direct to customer operations in India, The company currently
operates as “Nobero”.

The Financial Statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 09, 2025,

Basis of preparation

21

2.2

2.3

24

Compliance with ind AS and historical cost convention

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) notified under the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended), read with Section 133 of the Companies Act; 2013 (“the Act”) and
presentation requirements of Division 1l ‘of Schedule Il of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable. The financial
statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except the following assets and liabilities, which have
been measured at fair value as required by the relevant ind As:

« Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);
» Defined employee benefit plans;
» Right of use assets and lease liabilities

Functional and Presentation Currency:

The financial statemients are presented in Indian Rupés {Rs. /%) which is the functional currericy of the Company. All amounts are rounded
1o two decimal places to the nedrest Lakhs, unless otherwise stated {% 1-Lakh is equal to T0.10 Million}.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities inthe Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An assetis treated as current when it is:

s Expettedto be realised orintended to be sold orconsumed in normal operating cycle;

s Held primarily for the purpose of irading;

# Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

s Cash or cash eguivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 2 liabilit: for at least twelve months after the reporting
period,

All other assets are classified as non-current,

Aliability isitreated as current when:

s It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

# It is.dueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or :

# There is'no.unconditional right to deferthe settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Alf other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are clagsified as non-current assets-and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Material accounting policies

{a) Revanue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised upon transfer of contro
reflects the consideration to which the Company expect to be entitiéd
To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following fivi
« Identify the contract with a customer; )
o {dentify the performance obligations in the contract;
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» Determine the transaction price; .
+ Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

o Becognise revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue from sale of products

Revenue from sales of products is measured at the amount of transaction price {net of returns, customer incentives, discounts, variablé
consideration and other similar charges offered by the Company) allocated to that performance obligation.

Goodsand Service Tax {GST) is not received by the Company in its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity
by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is exciuded from revenue.

Assets and liabilities arising from right to return

The Company has contracts with customers which entitles them the unconditional tight to return,

Right to return assets

Aright of return gives an entity & contractial right to recover the goods froma customer {return to return asset), if the customer exercises
its option to return the goods and obtain a refund. The asset is measured at the carrying amount of the inventory, less any-expected costs
to recover the goods; including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Asset and liabilities arising from Right toreturn assets
The company has contracts with thecustormers which éntitles them the unconditional right to return.

Refund liabilities i

A refund liability is the obligation to refund part or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer. The Company has
therefore recognised refund liabilities in respect of customer’s right to return. The liability is measured at the amount the Company
ultimately expects it will have 6 return to the customer. The Company updates its estimate of refund fiabilities (and the corresponding
change in thetransaction price} at the end of each reporting period.

The Company has presented its right to return assets and refund liabilities under other current assets and other current liabilities;
respectively.

{b) Property, plant and eguipment
Property, plant and égquiprient is stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and-accumu ated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation on property, glant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful Iife of the asset estimated by the

management. Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro rata basis from the month of installation or arquisition. Depreciation on
deletions/ disposals is provided o a pro rata basis upto the month preceding the month of defetions/ disposais, The management believes
that these estimated useful lives reflact fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be 1ised. The Company has
used the following rates to provide depreciation on its tangible fixed assets:

(1} Assets where useful life differ from Schedule il

Useful life as prescribed by
Assets Class of Assets Schedule It of the Companies Estimatfa auseful
Act, 2013 e

Servers, end user devices, such as Computers 3 years for end user devices 4years
desktops, laptops, ete, and 6 years for servers

Furniture and fittings {other than | Furniture and fixtures

retail stores) 10years 7years
Office electrical equipment Office equipment 5 years ' 4 years

Useful life of assets different from that prescribed in Schedule Il has been estimated by the management, supported by technical

- assessment,
{1}) Leasehold assets
Assets Class of Assets

Period of lease or management’s estimate of useful life,
whichever is shorter
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{c) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, 4 lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether

a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assess whether:

# The contract involves the use of an identified asset ~ this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be physically distinct or
represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the
asset is not identified;

¢ The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout the period of use;
and

= The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has the right when it has the decision-making rights that are
most refevant to changing how:and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what
purpose the assetis Used is predetermined, either the Company has the right to operate the asset; orthe Company designed the asset,
in'a way that predetermines how.and for what purpose it will be used.

Atinception or on reassessiment of a contract that contains a fease component, the Company allocates the consideration in'the contract

to each lease.component on the basis of their relative stand-alohe prices.

Where the Company is the lessee

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognisesiaight-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for short-term leases which are
less than'12 months and leases of low value assets. The right-ofuse asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability plus any initial direct costs incurred less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the lease commencement date to the end of the
lease term. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of 3
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful fife of the asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets
ate determined on the same basis as those of property. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment {osses, if
any,-adjusted for certein remeasurements of the lease liability.

Lease liabilities

The lease lability Is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid-at the commencement date. The lease
payments are discounted using the interast rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rite caninot be readily
determined, the Company uses incremental borraving rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.
The lease liabilities are measured at antortised cost using the effective interest method.

Inaddition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-mrieasured if there is a modification arising due to change.in the ease term, change
inthe lease paynients or a change in‘the assessr>ant of an option to purchase the underlying asset. When'the lease liability is ré-méasured
i this way, a corresponding adjustment is made io the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, o is recorded in profit of loss if the
cartying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero and there is a further reductionin measurerment of the Jease fiability.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property, and lease liabilities, separately in the
‘Balance Sheet,

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets
The Company applies the short-tarm lease recoghitich ekemption to its short-term leases {i.ey those Ieases that have a lease term of 12

months or less from the commencement ‘date and do not contain 2 purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on 3 straight-line basis over the lease term.

{d)  Going concern
The management has performed an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the assessment, the
management believes that there is no material uncertainty with respect to any events or conditions that may cast a significant doubt on
‘the entity to continue as a going concern, hence the Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,

{e) Financial instruments :
Lo 'Cla‘g‘siﬁfation of financial assets at'amortised cost : The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost onlyif both of the

o
Joke

seiteria are met: (a) the asset is held within 2 business maodel whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
, ” Fual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and-interest. Financial assets classified at
i oSt opmprise trade recaivables, loans, security deposits.
:/#52-1/1-3, 4th Floor®

NH Service Rd, Gunadala 1= i
\ VIJAYAWADA /% jf
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ii.  Classification of financial assets.at fair value through other comprehensive income ; Financial assets at fair value through:other
comprehensive income (FVOC) comprise equity securities {unlisted) which are not held for trading, and for which the Company
has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise changes in fair value through OCI rather than profit or 0ss. These are
strategic investments and the Company considers this classification to be more relevant.

iii. Classification of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ; The Company classifies the following financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL): {g) debt investments (bonds, debentures and mutual funds) that do not qualify for measurement
at:either amortised cost or FVOC, (b) equity investments that are held for trading, and {c) equity investments for which the entity
has not glected to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCH, and Investments in financial instruments issued by subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture, whose contractual terms are not wholly equity in nature.

{f) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from. customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business and reflect the Company's

unconditional right to consideration {that is, payment is due only onthe passage of time).

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Company
holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies the simplified approach required by ind AS 108, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

{g) Inventories
Traded goods are valued at costor net realisable value, whichever is lower; Costis determined on weighted average cost basis.
2.5 New and amended standards adopted by the Company: )
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated September 9, 2024 and September 28, 2024 notified the Companies {indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024,
respectively, which amended/ notified certain accounting standards {see-below), and are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2024:
*Instrance contracts - Ind.AS 117; and
*» Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback — Amendments Yo Ind AS 116

These amendments did not havéany material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periodsand are not expected to significantly affect
the cyrrentor future periods.

Standards issued but not et effective:

Comipanies are required to explain if there are any accounting standards which are issued but not yet effective and are expected to have a

material impact on the company. As oh the date of release of these iliustrative financial statements, MCA has not issued any standards/
_-amendments 16 accounting standards which are effectives from April 1, 2025.




	Audit Report_ Nobero
	Financials 24-25 Signed_Nobero

